
 

 

BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ – 
MEETING 

Commissioners' Agenda 
 

The Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) is comprised of the three elected County 
Commissioners: Ernie Moser (District 1), Jeff Hough (District 2, Chair), and Ken Bullock (District 
3). The BOCC generally meets twice weekly: Tuesdays & Thursdays at 9:00 a.m. Unless otherwise 
noted, meetings are generally held in the Commissioner's Chambers at 624 E Center, Room 212, 
Pocatello, Idaho. During these public meetings, the BOCC may approve contracts, expend funds, 
hear testimony, make decisions on land use cases, and take care of other County matters. 

Times are subject to change within 15 minutes of the stated time. 

 

Tuesday, December 23, 2025 
9:00 AM  Business Meeting (action items) 

Agenda:  

• Indigent Business may require an Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code §74-
206(1)(d) to consider records exempt from public disclosure (action item) 

 
BOARD OF AMBULANCE DISTRICT 

• Ryan O’Hearn, Pocatello Fire Chief, presenting a quarterly update  
• Tyson Koester, Lava Hot Springs Chamber of Commerce, requesting approval on an 

Ambulance Stand-by Fee Waiver for the Winter Festivity on February 7, 2026 (action 
item) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
• Tyson Koester, Lava Hot Springs Chamber of Commerce, seeking approval of and 

signature on a fee waiver for the portable bleachers for the Winter Festivity on February 
7, 2026 (requested 5 minutes) (action item) 

• Shanda Crystal, Procurement, regarding (1) a request for signatures on two change orders 
with Headwaters Construction and, (2) to provide a procurement update (requested 10 
minutes) (action item) 

1 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



• Kristi Klauser, Auditing, requesting a signature (1) on the 2025 Annual Road and Bridge
Financial Report, (2) Grant Assessment for Underage Alcohol Grant and (3) on Fiscal
Year 2025 vessel report(requesting 5 minutes) (action item)

• Approval of the Bannock County Board of Commissioners Quarterly Jail Inspection
report executed on December 16, 2025, per Idaho Code §20-622 (action item)

RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (action items): 

Resolution No. 2025-89 Authorizing the Destruction of Records 
Resolution No. 2025-90 Approving Tax Cancellation Requests 

LETTERS AND NOTICES (action items):   

SIGNATURE ONLY (action items): 

CONSENT AGENDA (action items): 

• Board of Ambulance District: Invoices and Commissioner Report
• Board of Commissioners: Invoices, Commissioners Reports, and Credit Applications
• Salary Rate Approval Forms/Notice of Separation with Potential Executive Session under

Idaho Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel with potential action following
adjournment of Executive Session

• Payroll Report
• Alcohol Licenses and Permits
• Certificate of Residency Approval
• Memorandum Authorization for Accounts Payable
• Cardholder User Agreement and Authorization
• Manual Checks
• Mileage and Travel Approvals
• Minutes: Approval of and signature on certification for meeting minutes for December16

and 18, 2025

2 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



3 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



4 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



5 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



6 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



7 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



8 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



9 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



10 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



11 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



12 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



13 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



14 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



15 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



16 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



17 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



18 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



19 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



20 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 1 of 25

Application Overview
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/9/2025 3:17 PM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

Application Overview

Please review the following information.

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS 
LAW ENFORCEMENT (PFS-LE) 

GRANT 

Application & Award Period: The application period for Federal Fiscal Year 2026 (FFY2026) PFS-LE funding 
opportunity is December 8, 2025 - January 5, 2026. The grant award period is February 1, 2026 – September 30, 2026.

Funding Description: The PFS-LE funding aims to support law enforcement agencies with the implementation of 
effective enforcement activities to prevent alcohol misuse, underage drinking, prescription medication misuse, illicit 
opioid use, and methamphetamine use, and youth substance use at the state and community levels to address 
specific, locally identified drug and alcohol-related challenges. 

The PFS-LE application is to be used by eligible applicants seeking funding to implement strategies and programs to 
prevent alcohol, prescription drug, illicit opioid, and methamphetamine abuse and youth substance use and reduce 
the impact of substance misuse at the community level. 

Application Information: 

• This application follows the Strategic Prevention Framework (SPF), which was developed by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) to provide prevention planners with a comprehensive approach to understanding and addressing the substance misuse problems facing their states and communities. You can learn more about the SPF here. 
• This funding opportunity is for FFY2026, the grant award period is February 1, 2026 – September 30, 2026. 
• Additional FFY2026 PFS-LE application information, including the Notice of Funding Opportunity and the Application Guide, can be found here. 

Applicants assume all costs associated with the preparation and completion of this grant application. 
ODP is a government entity, and it is understood and agreed that ODP’s grant awards are contingent upon funds 
appropriated by federal funding agencies and the Idaho Legislature, funds granted by the federal government, or both.

21 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://odp.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025/12/samhsa-strategic-prevention-framework-guide.pdf
https://prevention.odp.idaho.gov/sfy26-funding-opportunity-announcement_pfs-law-enforcement-grant/
https://prevention.odp.idaho.gov/fy26-pfs-le-application-guide/
https://prevention.odp.idaho.gov/pfs-le/


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 2 of 25

A. Organization Information
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/11/2025 8:34 AM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

A. Organization Information

Please provide the following information.

Organization Information

A.1. Organization Name
Bannock County Sheriff's Office

A.2. Organization Type
Public Entity

A.3. Organization Phone
(208) 236-7109

A.4. Organization Physical Address
5800 S. 5th Avenue 
Pocatello , ID 83204

A.5. Organization Mailing Address (If different from 
Physical Address)
same

A.6. Organization Website URL

A.7. Region 
Region V

Need to know which region you are in? Click here.

Primary Contact Information

A.8. Applicant Type
Both

A.9. First Name
Jeff

A.10. Last Name
Fullmer

A.11. Email
jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov

A.12. Telephone
(208) 236-7109

Fiscal Agent Information (If Applicable)

A.13. First Name

A.14. Last Name

A.15. Title

A.16. Telephone

A.17. Fax

22 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://healthandwelfare.idaho.gov/health-wellness/community-health/public-health-districts


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 3 of 25

A.18. Email

A.19. Mailing Address

23 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 4 of 25

B. Community Needs Assessment
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/17/2025 7:43 AM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

B. Community Needs Assessment

A community needs assessment identifies local prevention needs by analyzing data from various sources. This helps applicants 
demonstrate their prioritized substance misuse issues, understand their impact, pinpoint contributing factors, assess readiness, and 
determine necessary resources. Please provide the following information to help us understand the local substance use issues and 
prevention needs in your community. Each of the four short narratives should be limited to 350 words (or 3000 characters). For 
more information on Assessment in the SPF, click here. (20 Points Total)

B.1. Demographics 
Provide a community profile, including demographics such as age, race, ethnicity, gender, socioeconomic status, 
culture, religion, and sexual orientation. Describe what it is like to live and work in your community. 
Bannock County, located in southeastern Idaho, has an estimated 2025 population of approximately 91,435 residents. 
The community is predominantly White (81.1% to 84.3%), with a growing Hispanic or Latino population that currently 
accounts for nearly 10% of residents. The median age is approximately 35 to 38 years, reflecting a relatively young 
population influenced by the presence of Idaho State University in Pocatello. Economically, the county has a median 
household income of roughly $64,080, while the poverty rate stands at approximately 12.2%. Educationally, the 
county demonstrates a strong profile, with about 19.5% of adults holding a bachelor’s degree and approximately 
10.7% having attained graduate or professional degrees. 

B.2. Problems 
Describe the nature of the substance misuse problem in your community. How do you know this is a problem? 
Include quantitative data (e.g., school survey results, number of school incidents, juvenile arrest rates etc.) 
In 2025, substance misuse remains a critical public health and safety concern in Bannock County, Idaho, where 
fentanyl and methamphetamine are identified as the most significant drug threats. The county has one of the state's 
highest rates of stimulant-related overdose deaths, with local reports from late 2025 indicating that synthetic opioids 
now account for the majority of overdose fatalities in the area. Statewide, Idaho saw a record 12.25% increase in 
toxicology cases in fiscal year 2025, the highest in a decade, with 90% of adult DUI toxicology samples testing positive 
for at least one drug. In Bannock County specifically, the criminal justice system reflects these trends; roughly 80% of 
local offenders struggle with alcohol or drug misuse, and 50% of jail inmates are clinically addicted. To combat these 
rising rates, the county has expanded the reach of its Problem Solving Courts and installed opioid emergency kits in 
public facilities such as the county jail and juvenile detention centers. 

B.3. Causes 
Describe the perceived causes of substance misuse problems in your community. Examples include: availability of 
alcohol, lack of enforcement of underage drinking laws, lack of prevention education, poor parental controls, social 
norms, etc. 
In Bannock County, Idaho, alcohol misuse is driven by a combination of high accessibility and complex socioeconomic 
factors common to rural and transition areas. This can include Self Medication and Mental Health, rural 
socioeconomic stress, social and peer influence, and underage transitions. A significant portion of Idaho youth reports 
obtaining alcohol from friends or family members, with over 50% stated drinking was occurring in private homes. 
Enforcement of underage drinking is often difficult when alcohol is sourced through social networks rather than retail 

24 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://odp.idaho.gov/samhsa-strategic-prevention-framework-guide/#page=6


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 5 of 25

outlets. Approximately 35% of Idaho youth get alcohol from friends and family members. 

B.4. Current Efforts 
Describe the current efforts to address the substance misuse problem in your community. Include efforts outside 
your organization to provide a comprehensive view of strategies currently used. 
The current efforts to address substance misuse in Bannock County focuses on a continuum of care that integrates 
prevention, harm reduction, and recovery support. This all includes school and youth programming, specialty courts 
for juveniles, and treatment access. 

25 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 6 of 25

C. Capacity Building
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/16/2025 3:55 PM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

C. Capacity Building

Please provide the following information to help us understand the capacity of your organization and/or local community. To learn 
more about Capacity Building in the SPF, click here. (15 Points Total)

C.1. Agency Capacity 
In the table below, please provide information about your agencies experience and capacity in the identified areas. 
(column 1 identifies the capacity area, column 2 asks for the status, and column 3 asks for a description). 

Capacity Area Status Description
Does your agency have previous 
experience implementing 
prevention activities?

Yes We have dedicated officers working OT to enforce and educate 
juveniles and the public for Marijuana and Methamphetamine use in 
the state of Idaho and our jurisdiction.  

 Does your agency/organization 
have dedicated prevention staff?

No We have sworn law enforcement Deputies to patrol and educate on a 
OT basis for this completion.

 Does your agency have 
officers/staff trained in evidence-
based prevention curricula or 
programs?

Yes Our Deputies are trained in evidence handling and packaging, we also 
have a evidence technician. 

 Does your agency have 
leadership support for the 
proposed activities?

Yes Our Deputies are lead by support management staff on all proposed 
activities.

C.2. Staff Qualifications 
Click "Add Row" below to provide information about the qualifications and role of each key staff that will be involved 
in implementing the proposed activity/activities. 

Position Staff Name (or 
TBD)

Relevant Qualifications & 
Training

Role in Activities % Time 
Funded 
by Grant

Lieutenant Jeff Fullmer Certified Law Enforcement 
Officer

supervisor 25.00%

C.3. Agency Coordination 
Click "Add Row" below to provide a list of specific partners who will be involved in helping to implement the 
proposed activities. For example: coalitions, schools, civic organizations, youth groups, state or local government 
entities, etc. 

26 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://odp.idaho.gov/samhsa-strategic-prevention-framework-guide/#page=11


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 7 of 25

Partner Agency/Organization Role - How will they be involved?
Other Law Enforcement Agencies 
and local schools

Assisting with trainings, meetings, partnership in the awareness of illegal drugs 
and alcohol.

27 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 8 of 25

D. Alcohol Misuse & Underage 
Drinking Prevention
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/16/2025 1:52 PM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

D. Alcohol Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention

In application sections D-H, organizations can request funding for activities in five (5) different substance use categories - Alcohol 
Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention, Prescription Drug Misuse Prevention, Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention, Methamphetamine 
Use Prevention, and Youth Substance Use Prevention. The number of activities/categories an applicant requests funding for will not 
impact the likelihood of being awarded funds.

In the following section, please provide the requested planning, implementation, and budget information for requested funding for 
Alcohol Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention activities. If you DO NOT want to request funds for activities in this category, scroll 
to the bottom and click "Complete & Continue" to move on to the next section. (70 Points Total for All Categories).
For more information on Planning and Implementation in the SPF, click here.

Alcohol Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention Strategies – Planning, 
Implementation, and Budget

Alcohol Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention Activities – PLANNING 

D.1. Activity Selection – What alcohol misuse & underage drinking prevention activities do you plan to implement? 
(check all that apply)

   Retail Compliance and Regulation (i.e., compliance checks, shoulder tap operations, alcohol license 
inspections, ID fraud enforcement)

   Impaired Driving Enforcement (i.e., DUI/DWI enforcement)

   Underage Drinking Enforcement (i.e., party patrols, underage alcohol possession and consumption law 
enforcement, social host ordinance enforcement)

   Community Prevention & Education (i.e., community presentations, outreach, information dissemination, 
public awareness and education)

   Youth, Parent, Family, or Adult Programming (i.e., evidence-based/informed direct service programs with 
high-risk youth, adults, and/or parents)

   Multistakeholder Group Collaboration (i.e., Partnering with state and local-level stakeholders via coalitions, 
task forces, etc. to address alcohol misuse or underage drinking)

   Training (i.e., in-person or virtual trainings related to alcohol misuse or underage drinking)

28 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://odp.idaho.gov/samhsa-strategic-prevention-framework-guide/#page=14


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 9 of 25

   Other 
If you selected “Other” please identify and provide a description of the activity here. 

D.2. Activity Justification – Provide evidence that the activity(ies) you selected will address the identified substance 
misuse problems in your community. Cite data and research that will support your proposed activity(ies). You can 
find data source examples here.
About 2 in 5 Idahoans ages 12 plus have reported using alcohol. 23%of high school student reported the use of 
alcohol which is above the national average which is 22%, this being 1 in 6 high students have reported trying alcohol 
before the age of 13. 11.6% of high school student have been diagnosed with alcohol disorder in 2021 and 10% stating 
needing treatment for this and did not receive it. Bannock County Sheriff's Office will have dedicated trained officers 
to attend student gathering and activities to try and stop the misuse and underage drinking in the communities. 

Alcohol Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention Activities – IMPLEMENTATION 

D.3. Activity Description and Action Plan – Provide an outline of your proposed activity(ies) and how they will be 
implemented. What do you plan to do? How many sessions/activities will you implement? What are the locations 
for the activities? What are the start and completion dates/what is the anticipated timeline?
Bannock County Sheriff's Office will have dedicated officers to attend high school activities, gatherings and sporting 
events where alcohol is misused by students. Deputies will enforce the underage drinking laws of the state of Idaho 
during these events. Also Deputies will be patrolling areas of the community where youth tend to gather to enforce 
the laws of underage drinking. 

Alcohol Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention Activities – BUDGET 
The PFS-LE awards provide funding in three budget categories: (1) Staff – which includes all staff costs related to 
activity implementation; (2) Mileage – which includes all mileage costs related to activity implementation; and (3) 
Other – which includes all equipment, supplies, contractual, and other costs related to activity implementation. 

D.4.a. Staff Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify the staff, hours, and hourly rate for all staff that will be 
involved in activity implementation.

Staff Person Name Role Hourly Rate ($) Number of 
Hours

Total Staff Budget

$0.00

D.4.b. Staff Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need and role for each staff member listed in the 
table above. The budget description must demonstrate that expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable to 
the project. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).
Dedicated patrol Deputies will be patrolling the community looking for under age drinking.

29 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://prevention.odp.idaho.gov/data-sources/


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 10 of 25

D.5.a. Mileage Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify the anticipated travel and mileage costs associated with 
activity implementation. The FY2026 State of Idaho mileage reimbursement is $0.70 per mile, so please use this 
rate in your cost calculations.

Activity Number of Sessions Average Miles per 
Session

Total Mileage Cost

$0.00

D.5.b. Mileage Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need for the mileage totals proposed in the table 
above. The budget description must demonstrate that expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable to the 
activities. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).

D.6.a. Other Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify any other anticipated budget costs necessary for activity 
implementation (i.e., equipment, supplies, contractual, etc.).

Anticipated Budget Items Anticipated Budget Item Cost
$0.00

D.6.b. Other Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need for the Other Budget expenses proposed in the 
table above. The budget description must demonstrate that the expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable 
to the activities. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).
N/A

Total Funds Requested for Alcohol Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention Strategies 

D.7. Total Funds Requested – Please enter the total amount of funds requested between the proposed Staff, 
Mileage, and Other Budgets.
$5,000.00

30 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 11 of 25

E. Prescription Drug Misuse 
Prevention 
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/16/2025 1:52 PM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

E. Prescription Drug Misuse Prevention 

In application sections D-H, organizations can request funding for activities in five (5) different substance use categories - Alcohol 
Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention, Prescription Drug Misuse Prevention, Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention, Methamphetamine 
Use Prevention, and Youth Substance Use Prevention. The number of activities/categories an applicant requests funding for will not 
impact the likelihood of being awarded funds. 

In the following section, please provide the requested planning, implementation, and budget information for requested funding for 
Prescription Drug Misuse Prevention activities. If you DO NOT want to request funds for activities in this category, scroll to the 
bottom and click "Complete & Continue" to move on to the next section. (70 Points Total for all Categories) 
For more information on Planning and Implementation in the SPF, click here. 

Prescription Medication Misuse Prevention Strategies – Planning, 
Implementation, and Budget 

Prescription Medication Misuse Prevention Activities – PLANNING 

E.1. Activity Selection – What prescription medication misuse prevention activities do you plan on implementing? 
(check all that apply)

   Diversion & Distribution Enforcement (i.e., enforcement of existing laws and regulations around medication 
distribution, support efforts to curb diversion)

   Drug Disposal & Take Back Programs (i.e., supporting prescription drug disposal programs, permanent 
prescription drug disposal locations, or National Prescription Drug Take Back Day)

   Community Prevention & Education (i.e., community presentations, outreach, information dissemination, 
public awareness and education)

   Youth, Parent, Family, or Adult Programming (i.e., evidence-based/informed direct service programs with 
high-risk youth and/or adults)

   Multistakeholder Group Collaboration (i.e., Partnering with state and local-level stakeholders via coalitions, 
task forces, etc. to address Rx misuse-related issues)

   Training (i.e., in-person or virtual training related to Rx misuse)

   Other 
If you selected “Other” please identify and provide a description of the activity here.

31 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://odp.idaho.gov/samhsa-strategic-prevention-framework-guide/#page=14


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 12 of 25

E.2. Activity Justification – Provide evidence that the activity(ies) you selected will address the identified substance 
misuse problems in your community. Cite data and research that will support your proposed activity(ies). You can 
find data source examples here.

Prescription Medication Misuse Prevention Activities – IMPLEMENTATION 

E.3. Activity Description and Action Plan – Provide an outline of your proposed activity(ies) and how they will be 
implemented. What do you plan to do? How many sessions/activities will you implement? What are the locations 
for the activities? What are the start and completion dates/what is the anticipated timeline?

Prescription Medication Misuse Prevention Activities – BUDGET 
The PFS-LE grant awards provide funding in three budget categories: (1) Staff – which includes all staff costs related 
to activity implementation; (2) Mileage – which includes all mileage costs related to activity implementation; and 
(3) Other – which includes all equipment, supplies, contractual, and other costs related to activity implementation. 

E.4.a. Staff Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify the staff, hours, and hourly rate for all staff that will be 
involved in activity implementation.

Staff Person Name Role Hourly Rate ($) Number of 
Hours

Total Staff Budget

$0.00

E.4.b. Staff Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need and role for each staff member listed in the 
table above. The budget description must demonstrate that expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable to 
the project. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).

E.5.a. Mileage Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify the anticipated travel and mileage costs associated with 
activity implementation. The FY2026 State of Idaho mileage reimbursement is $0.70 per mile, so please use this 
rate in your cost calculations.

Activity Number of Sessions Average Miles per 
Session

Total Mileage Cost

$0.00

E.5.b. Mileage Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need for the mileage totals proposed in the table 
above. The budget description must demonstrate that expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable to the 
activities. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).

32 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://prevention.odp.idaho.gov/data-sources/


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 13 of 25

E.6.a. Other Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify any other anticipated budget costs necessary for activity 
implementation (i.e., equipment, supplies, contractual, etc.).

Anticipated Budget Items Anticipated Budget Item Cost
$0.00

E.6.b. Other Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need for the Other Budget expenses proposed in the 
table above. The budget description must demonstrate that the expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable 
to the activities. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).

Total Funds Requested for Prescription Medication Misuse Prevention Strategies 

E.7. Total Funds Requested – Please enter the total amount of funds requested between the proposed Staff, 
Mileage, and Other Budgets. 
$0.00

33 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 14 of 25

F. Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/16/2025 2:03 PM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

F. Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention

In application sections D-H, organizations can request funding for activities in five (5) different substance use categories - Alcohol 
Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention, Prescription Drug Misuse Prevention, Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention, Methamphetamine 
Use Prevention, and Youth Substance Use Prevention. The number of activities/categories an applicant requests funding for will not 
impact the likelihood of being awarded funds. 

In the following section, please provide the requested planning, implementation, and budget information for requested funding for 
Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention activities. If you DO NOT want to request any funds for activities in this category, scroll to the 
bottom and click "Complete & Continue" to move on to the next section. (70 Points Total for All Categories) 
For more information on Planning and Implementation in the SPF, click here. 

Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention Strategies – Planning, Implementation, and 
Budget 

Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention Activities – PLANNING 

F.1. Activity Selection – What illicit opioid misuse prevention activities do you plan to implement? (check all that 
apply)

   Illicit Opioid Monitoring & Surveillance (i.e., analyzing data and conducting environmental scans to assess 
community vulnerabilities and identify high risk areas, collaborating with state and local partners to track trends in 
fentanyl and illicit opioid misuse)

   Distribution & Interdiction Enforcement (i.e., disrupting illicit opioid distribution, seizing illicit opioids)

   Multistakeholder Group Collaboration (i.e., partnering with state and local-level stakeholders to address 
opioid misuse and support prevention programs)

   Community Prevention & Education (i.e., community presentations, outreach, information dissemination, 
public awareness and education)

   Youth, Parent, Family, or Adult Programming (i.e., evidence-based/informed direct service programs with 
high-risk youth and/or adults)

   Training (i.e., in-person or virtual training related to illicit opioids and fentanyl)

   Other 
If you selected “Other” please identify and provide a description of the activity here. 

34 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://odp.idaho.gov/samhsa-strategic-prevention-framework-guide/#page=14


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 15 of 25

F.2. Activity Justification – Provide evidence that the activity(ies) you selected will address the identified substance 
misuse problems in your community. Cite data and research that will support your proposed activity(ies). You can 
find data source examples here.
In 2021 3.6% of Idaho youth had reported taking more opioids than prescribed by a physician, while 1.2% stating using 
opioids that weren't prescribed by their physician. In Idaho the over dose rate of Opioids use rose 153% between the 
years of 2012 and 2022. 

Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention Activities – IMPLEMENTATION 

F.3. Activity Description and Action Plan – Provide an outline of your proposed activity(ies) and how they will be 
implemented. What do you plan to do? How many sessions/activities will you implement? What are the locations 
for the activities? What are the start and completion dates/what is the anticipated timeline?
Bannock County Sheriff's Office will have dedicate law enforcement Deputies in the community patrolling youth 
gatherings such as juvenile parties, high school activities, sporting events for local highs schools, and sites where 
youth hang out to interact. The Deputies will implement this during high events for local high schools in the 
community, this will try to be done at certain times during each month for the activity. 

Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention Activities – BUDGET 
The PFS-LE grant awards provide funding in three budget categories: (1) Staff – which includes all staff costs related 
to activity implementation; (2) Mileage – which includes all mileage costs related to activity implementation; and 
(3) Other – which includes all equipment, supplies, contractual, and other costs related to activity implementation. 

F.4.a. Staff Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify the staff, hours, and hourly rate for all staff that will be 
involved in activity implementation.

Staff Person Name Role Hourly Rate ($) Number of 
Hours

Total Staff Budget

$0.00

F.4.b. Staff Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need and role for each staff member listed in the 
table above. The budget description must demonstrate that expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable to 
the project. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).

F.5.a. Mileage Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify the anticipated travel and mileage costs associated with 
activity implementation. The FY2026 State of Idaho mileage reimbursement is $0.70 per mile, so please use this 
rate in your cost calculations.

Activity Number of Sessions Average Miles per 
Session

Total Mileage Cost

$0.00

35 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://prevention.odp.idaho.gov/data-sources/


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 16 of 25

F.5.b. Mileage Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need for the mileage totals proposed in the table 
above. The budget description must demonstrate that expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable to the 
activities. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).

F.6.a. Other Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify any other anticipated budget costs necessary for activity 
implementation (i.e., equipment, supplies, contractual, etc.).

Anticipated Budget Items Anticipated Budget Item Cost
$0.00

F.6.b. Other Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need for the Other Budget expenses proposed in the 
table above. The budget description must demonstrate that the expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable 
to the activities. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).
N/A

Total Funds Requested for Opioid Misuse Prevention Strategies 

F.7. Total Funds Requested – Please enter the total amount of funds requested between the proposed Staff, 
Mileage, and Other Budgets.
$5,000.00

36 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 17 of 25

G. Methamphetamine Use 
Prevention 
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/16/2025 2:13 PM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

G. Methamphetamine Use Prevention 

In application sections D-H, organizations can request funding for activities in five (5) different substance use categories - Alcohol 
Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention, Prescription Drug Misuse Prevention, Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention, Methamphetamine 
Use Prevention, and Youth Substance Use Prevention. The number of activities/categories an applicant requests funding for will not 
impact the likelihood of being awarded funds. 

In the following section, please provide the requested planning, implementation, and budget information for requested funding for 
Methamphetamine Use Prevention activities. If you DO NOT want to request funds for activities in this category, scroll to the 
bottom and click "Complete & Continue" to move on to the next section. (70 Points Total for All Categories) 
For more information on Planning and Implementation in the SPF, click here.

Methamphetamine Use Prevention Strategies – Planning, Implementation, 
and Budget 

Methamphetamine Use Prevention Activities – PLANNING 

G.1. Activity Selection – What methamphetamine use prevention activities do you plan to implement? (check all that 
apply)

   Methamphetamine Monitoring & Surveillance (i.e., analyzing data and conducting environmental scans to 
assess community vulnerabilities and identify high risk areas, collaborating with state and local partners to track 
trends in meth use and related incidents)

   Distribution & Interdiction Enforcement (i.e., disrupting meth distribution, seizing meth)

   Multistakeholder Group Collaboration (i.e., partnering with state and local-level stakeholders to address meth 
use and support prevention programs)

   Community Prevention & Education (i.e., community presentations, outreach, information dissemination, 
public awareness and education)

   Youth, Parent, Family, or Adult Programs (i.e., evidence-based/informed direct service programs with high-
risk youth and/or adults)

   Training (i.e., in-person or virtual training related to meth use)

   Other 
If you selected “Other” please identify and provide a description of the activity here. 

37 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://odp.idaho.gov/samhsa-strategic-prevention-framework-guide/#page=14


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 18 of 25

G.2. Activity Justification – Provide evidence that the activity(ies) you selected will address the identified substance 
misuse problems in your community. Cite data and research that will support your proposed activity(ies). You can 
find data source examples here.
In Idaho only 9% of high school students age 18 and older had ever used methamphetamine. Idaho's fentanyl death 
rate rose 978% between the years 2012 and 2022. 

Methamphetamine Misuse Prevention Activities – IMPLEMENTATION 

G.3. Activity Description and Action Plan – Provide an outline of your proposed activity(ies) and how they will be 
implemented. What do you plan to do? How many sessions/activities will you implement? What are the locations 
for the activities? What are the start and completion dates/what is the anticipated timeline?
Bannock County Sheriff's Office will have dedicated law enforcement officers patrolling areas of the community 
looking for areas and gathering of Idaho students using illegal drugs such as methamphetamine and fentanyl. This will 
be done with law enforcement on a weekly to monthly basis in the community involving youth activities and events. 

Methamphetamine Misuse Prevention Activities – BUDGET 
The PFS-LE grant awards provide funding in three budget categories: (1) Staff – which includes all staff costs related 
to activity implementation; (2) Mileage – which includes all mileage costs related to activity implementation; and 
(3) Other – which includes all equipment, supplies, contractual, and other costs related to activity implementation. 

G.4.a. Staff Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify the staff, hours, and hourly rate for all staff that will be 
involved in activity implementation.

Staff Person Name Role Hourly Rate ($) Number of 
Hourse

Total Staff Budget

$0.00

G.4.b. Staff Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need and role for each staff member listed in the 
table above. The budget description must demonstrate that expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable to 
the project. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).
N/A

G.5.a. Mileage Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify the anticipated travel and mileage costs associated with 
activity implementation. The SFY2026 State of Idaho mileage reimbursement is $0.70 per mile, so please use this 
rate in your cost calculations

Activity Number of Sessions Average Miles per 
Session

Total Mileage Cost

$0.00

G.5.b. Mileage Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need for the mileage totals proposed in the table 
above. The budget description must demonstrate that expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable to the 

38 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://prevention.odp.idaho.gov/data-sources/


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 19 of 25

activities. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).

G.6.a. Other Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify any other anticipated budget costs necessary for activity 
implementation (i.e., equipment, supplies, contractual, etc.).

Anticipated Budget Items Anticipated Budget Item Cost
$0.00

G.6.b. Other Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need for the Other Budget expenses proposed in the 
table above. The budget description must demonstrate that the expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable 
to the activities. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).

Total Funds Requested for Methamphetamine Misuse Prevention Strategies 

G.7. Total Funds Requested – Please enter the total amount of funds requested between the proposed Staff, 
Mileage, and Other Budgets.
$4,000.00

39 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 20 of 25

H. Youth Substance Use Prevention 
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/16/2025 3:53 PM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

H. Youth Substance Use Prevention 

In application sections D-H, organizations can request funding for activities in five (5) different substance use categories - Alcohol 
Misuse & Underage Drinking Prevention, Prescription Drug Misuse Prevention, Illicit Opioid Misuse Prevention, Methamphetamine 
Use Prevention, and Youth Substance Use Prevention. The number of activities/categories an applicant requests funding for will not 
impact the likelihood of being awarded funds. 

In the following section, please provide the requested planning, implementation, and budget information for requested funding for 
Youth Substance Use Prevention activities. If you DO NOT want to request funds for activities in this category, scroll to the bottom 
and click "Complete & Continue" to move on to the next section. 
For more information on Planning and Implementation in the SPF, click here.

Youth Substance Use Prevention Strategies – Planning, Implementation, and 
Budget 

Youth Substance Use Prevention Activities – PLANNING 

H.1. Activity Selection – What youth substance use prevention activities do you plan to implement? (check all that 
apply)

   Access Restriction & Compliance Surveillance (i.e., conducting compliance checks or sting operations, 
enforcing age-restricted purchase laws, implementing shoulder tap operations)

   Youth Possession & Use Interventions (i.e., youth alcohol and drug impaired driving prevention, issuing 
citations or warnings, patrolling events or hotspots, collaborating with schools or referrals for at-risk students)

   Collaborative Prevention Partnerships (i.e., partnering with schools, coalitions, or state and local-level 
stakeholders to address youth substance use and support prevention programs)

   Community Prevention & Youth Education (i.e., implementing education programs, community presentations, 
outreach, information dissemination, public awareness and education)

   Data Monitoring (i.e., analyzing local data to identify youth substance use trends, mapping high-risk areas for 
targeted interventions, reporting data to support community assessments)

   Youth-focused Programming (i.e., evidence-based/informed direct service programs with youth)

   Training (i.e., in-person or virtual training related to youth substance use)

   Other 
If you selected “Other” please identify and provide a description of the activity here. 

40 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://odp.idaho.gov/samhsa-strategic-prevention-framework-guide/#page=14


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 21 of 25

H.2. Activity Justification – Provide evidence that the activity(ies) you selected will address the identified substance 
misuse problems in your community. Cite data and research that will support your proposed activity(ies). You can 
find data source examples here.
The Bannock County Sheriff's Office will have dedicated law enforcement personnel holding classes and training youth 
about making realistic decisions about substance abuse in the local community among our children. Identifying 
resources and a prevention method for the youth in the community and awareness of the harm for substance abuse 
of illegal drugs and alcohol. By hosting these classes and meetings it would give the youth of our community the 
awareness and misuse of substance abuse prevention techniques and resources in the community. 

Youth Substance Use Prevention Activities – IMPLEMENTATION 

H.3. Activity Description and Action Plan – Provide an outline of your proposed activity(ies) and how they will be 
implemented. What do you plan to do? How many sessions/activities will you implement? What are the locations 
for the activities? What are the start and completion dates/what is the anticipated timeline?
The Bannock County Sheriff's Office will host trainings with dedicated Deputies speaking to youth in our area about 
substance abuse. Also our School Resource Officer will travel and speak at schools in our community about illegal 
drugs and alcohol. This would happen on a weekly to monthly basis in our county. 

Youth Substance Use Prevention Activities – BUDGET 
The PFS-LE grant awards provide funding in three budget categories: (1) Staff – which includes all staff costs related 
to activity implementation; (2) Mileage – which includes all mileage costs related to activity implementation; and 
(3) Other – which includes all equipment, supplies, contractual, and other costs related to activity implementation. 

H.4.a. Staff Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify the staff, hours, and hourly rate for all staff that will be 
involved in activity implementation.

Staff Person Name Role Hourly Rate ($) Number of 
Hourse

Total Staff Budget

$0.00

H.4.b. Staff Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need and role for each staff member listed in the 
table above. The budget description must demonstrate that expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable to 
the project. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).
N/A

H.5.a. Mileage Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify the anticipated travel and mileage costs associated with 
activity implementation. The SFY2026 State of Idaho mileage reimbursement is $0.70 per mile, so please use this 
rate in your cost calculations

Activity Number of Sessions Average Miles per 
Session

Total Mileage Cost

$0.00

41 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://prevention.odp.idaho.gov/data-sources/


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 22 of 25

H.5.b. Mileage Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need for the mileage totals proposed in the table 
above. The budget description must demonstrate that expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable to the 
activities. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).
N/A

H.6.a. Other Budget – Click “Add Row” below to identify any other anticipated budget costs necessary for activity 
implementation (i.e., equipment, supplies, contractual, etc.).

Anticipated Budget Items Anticipated Budget Item Cost
$0.00

H.6.b. Other Budget Justification – Please detail and justify the need for the Other Budget expenses proposed in the 
table above. The budget description must demonstrate that the expenses are reasonable, necessary, and allocable 
to the activities. Limited to 350 words (or 3,000 characters).
N/A

Total Funds Requested for Youth Substance Use Prevention Strategies 

H.7. Total Funds Requested – Please enter the total amount of funds requested between the proposed Staff, 
Mileage, and Other Budgets.
$3,000.00

42 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 23 of 25

I. Evaluation
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/16/2025 4:13 PM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

I. Evaluation

Evaluation involves examining both the process and the outcomes of prevention programs and practices to enhance and improve 
prevention efforts. It is the systematic collection and analysis of information about prevention activities to reduce uncertainty, 
improve effectiveness, and guide decision-making. To learn more about Evaluation in the SPF, click here. 
Please provide the following information. (15 Points Total)

I.1. Describe the difference you expect your proposed activities to make in your community. Consider the substance 
misuse problems you previously identified and how you think the implementation of the activities you have 
selected will fit your community’s needs and address the identified issues. Additionally, please share what 
evaluation tools and methods you plan to utilize to measure the activity impacts and outcomes. 
The Bannock County Sheriff's Office will assess the nature and extent of both substance abuse and related harmful 
behaviors in the community. By assessing what substance misuse problems, how often these misuse problems are 
occurring and which ones are happening the most, where are these substance abuse misuse problems occurring 
(home, school, youth parties, families etc.), and who is experiencing most of these misuse problems. The risk factors 
and protective factors of this problem in our community. To inform the community and youth the prevention and 
availability for resources in our area. 

I.2. If applicable, please share if you have implemented prevention activities in the past. If so, did you do any form 
of process of outcome evaluation to understand the outcomes? Did the efforts produce positive results? If 
available, cite outcome data, from prior years and/or efforts. 
The Bannock County Sheriff's Office has hosted trainings and classes with the youth in our area at the Sheriff's Office 
as well as traveling to local schools to teach awareness of alcohol and illicit drugs to our community.

43 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://odp.idaho.gov/samhsa-strategic-prevention-framework-guide/#page=23


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 24 of 25

Submit
Completed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/17/2025 7:47 AM

Case Id: 30579
Name: Bannock County Sheriff's Office - 2025

Address: 5800 S. 5th Avenue , Pocatello , ID 83204

Submit

Please provide the following information.

I, the Applicant and/or PFS-LE Program Administrator, am over 18 years of age, and assure the following: 

   A. Assurance of Compliance with Record Keeping/Data Collection Standards – If any grant funds are awarded 
pursuant to this application, the Applicant organization will maintain detailed records on all PFS-LE grant funded 
activities, which indicate the date, time, number of participants and nature of services delivered under the grant 
award. Furthermore, the Applicant organization will maintain detailed records related to all activities 
reimbursed/paid for by grant funds and included in reimbursement requests. ODP has the right to audit grantee 
payments and reimbursement requests both before and after payment and to contest any billing or portion 
thereof. Additionally, the Applicant will comply with evaluation data collection requirements on all projects and 
submit that data to ODP via grant activity reports. These records shall be subject to inspection by ODP. 

   B. Assurance of Compliance with Parental Consent Policy – All activities conducted by the Applicant 
organization with awarded grant funds to provide services to minors will comply with the Parental Consent Policy 
(found here). All applicable staff will be fully informed of and will abide by the policies and requirements set forth 
therein.

   C. Assurance of Compliance with Substance Abuse Prevention Charitable Choice Policy – All applicant 
organizations will review the Substance Abuse Prevention Charitable Choice Policy (found here) and understand the 
Federal Regulations regarding faith-based organizations delivering federally funded substance abuse prevention 
services.

   D. Assurance of Compliance with Idaho State Laws – If any grant funds are awarded pursuant to this 
application, the Applicant organization will abide by all State laws, rules, regulations, and executive orders of the 
Office of the Governor, pertaining to equal opportunity. Pursuant to all such laws, rules, regulations, and executive 
orders, the applicant assures ODP that no person in the State of Idaho shall, on grounds of race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, age, or disability, be excluded from employment with or participation in, be denied the benefit of, 
or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any activity performed under a grant award entered into 
pursuant to this application.

   E. Assurance of Compliance with Federal Laws, Regulations, and Policies Regarding Lobbying and Supplanting 
– If any grant funds are awarded pursuant to this application, the Applicant assures ODP that it will comply with all 
applicable federal laws, regulations, and policies governing the use of federal grant funds, including but not limited 
to the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR 
Part 200), the Anti-Lobbying Act (18 U.S.C. § 1913), and the Byrd Amendment (31 U.S.C. § 1352). The Applicant 

44 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://prevention.odp.idaho.gov/sfy26-parental-consent-policy_final/
https://prevention.odp.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/Charitable-Choice-Policy.pdf


Printed By: Jeff Fullmer on 12/17/2025 25 of 25

agrees that no federal funds provided under a grant award pursuant to this application will be used for lobbying 
activities, including attempts to influence legislation, elections, or government officials, or to encourage grassroots 
lobbying efforts. The Applicant further assures that any federal funds provided via a grant award pursuant to this 
application will be used to supplement, and not supplant, funds from other federal, state, or local sources. 
Supplanting occurs when a recipient uses federal grant funds to replace existing non-federal funds, thereby 
reducing the recipient's financial commitment to a program or activity. Federal funds are intended to supplement 
(add to) existing resources, not substitute for them. The Applicant will maintain accurate records to demonstrate 
compliance and will promptly disclose any lobbying activities funded with non-federal funds as required by federal 
law. Failure to comply with these requirements may result in termination of this agreement, repayment of funds, 
or other penalties as prescribed by law.

THEREFORE, to be eligible for and as a condition of this grant award, I agree to the following: 

The five assurances acknowledged above will be effective at the time a Grant Award Agreement is signed between the 
Grantee and Office of Drug Policy, and will remain in effect for the grant term for which funding is being sought. 

By typing my name in the indicated field below, I hereby certify that all of the information submitted in this 
application is true, accurate and complete. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be 
denied legal effect solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form, and that if a law 
requires a record or signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement. 

Signature
Lt. Jeff Fullmer
Electronically signed by jfullmer@bannockcounty.gov on 12/17/2025 7:46 AM

Date
12/17/2025

45 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



46 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



47 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



48 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



49 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



50 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



51 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



52 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



DRAFT December 16, 2025, BOCC Minutes 

 

  

  Meeting Details       

  Date of Meeting: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 

  Commissioners present: Ernie Moser, Jeff Hough, and Ken Bullock 

  Clerk of the Board: Jason C. Dixon 

  Absent Board Members:  

  
Staff present: 

Deputy Clerk Nancy Allen, Comptroller Kristi Klauser, HR Director 

Matthew Phillips, and (9:09 am) Attorney Jonathan Radford 

        

  Agenda Details       

  AGENDA 
  Regular Business and Claims Meeting (action items) 

Agenda: 

1 • Indigent Business may require an Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code §74-206(1)(d) to 

consider records exempt from public disclosure (action item) 

2 • Anita Hymas, Assessor, requesting signature on a 2024 and 2025 Property Tax Roll (requested 5 

minutes) (action item) 

3 • Ashley Bringhurst, D6 Treatment, regarding signature on Independent Contractor Agreement for 

Professional or Consultant Services (requested 10 minutes) (action item) 

4 • Heather Studley, GIS, providing a GIS update 

5 RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (action items): 

Resolution No. 2025-88 Approving Tax Cancellation Requests 

County Ordinance 2025-07 City of Arimo Area of Impact 

County Ordinance 2025-08 City of Chubbuck Area of Impact  

County Ordinance 2025-09 City of Downey Area of Impact 

County Ordinance 2025-10 City of Inkom Area of Impact 

County Ordinance 2025-11 City of Lava Hot Springs Area of Impact 

County Ordinance 2025-12 City of McCammon Area of Impact 

County Ordinance 2025-13 City of Pocatello Area of Impact 

6 SIGNATURE ONLY (action items): 

Memo to Dispose Documents 

Sharp Performance 

7 CONSENT AGENDA (action items): 

• Manual Checks 

• Alcohol Licenses and Catering Permits 

• Certificate of Residency Approval 

• Salary Rate Approval Forms/Notice of Separation with Potential Executive Session under Idaho 

Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel with potential action following adjournment of 

Executive Session 

• Mileage and Travel Approvals 

• Minutes:  Approval of and signature on certification for meeting minutes for December 9 and 11, 

2025 

8 Bid Opening for Request for Services for Lava Ranches Fuel Reduction Phase 2 (action item) 

9 Interview for Snow Groomer Committee with Executive Session under Idaho Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) 

regarding personnel with potential action following adjournment of Executive Session (action item) 

10 Meeting to discuss renewable energy 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF  

BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

53 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



DRAFT December 16, 2025, BOCC Minutes 

 

11 Quarterly Jail Inspection (potential action items)  

NOTE:  This meeting will be held at 5800 S. 5th Ave., Pocatello, Idaho 
 

 

 

 

 

  Meeting Notes 
  
  

  

1 9:01 AM Hough called the meeting to order. There were no indigent cases. 

 

2 9:01 AM Chief Deputy Assessor Randy Hobson appeared to review tax cancellation requests. Moser 

moved to approve the requests. The motion passed.  

 

3 9:02 AM Trial Court Administrator Jason Dye also appeared and requested an agreement with Idaho 

Department of Juvenile Corrections. Bullock moved to approve the agreement with IDJC. The motion 

passed. 

 

4 9:03 AM Studley gave department updates. 

 

5 9:17 AM Moser moved to approve Resolution 2025-88. The motion passed. Bullock moved to approve 

Ordinance Numbers 2025-07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, and 13. The motion passed. 

 

6 9:19 AM Hough moved to approve the memo to dispose of documents. The motion passed. 

9:20 AM Bullock moved to approve the contract with Sharp Performance. The motion passed.  

 

7 9:21 AM Moser moved to approve the consent agenda. The motion passed. 

 

8 10:00 AM Chief Procurement Office Shanda Crystal appeared. Hough reviewed the solicitation for Lava 

Ranches Fuel Reduction Phase 2. The bids were unsealed. Crystal explained the project will use grant 

funds so the bidders were asked for the number of acres that could be treated for that dollar amount. 

Charity Staggs from SICOG appeared. Hough reviewed responses from: 

Retroscape LLC 137.44 acres 

Absolute Forestry LLP 205 acres 

Bob McKee Construction 47 acres 

CR Fence Company LLC 91 acres 

10:03 AM Moser moved to accept the proposals for review. The motion passed 

 

9 10:04 AM Hough moved to enter into executive session under Idaho Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding 

personnel. The motion passed by roll call vote.  

10:22 AM Moser moved to exit executive session. The motion passed. Moser moved to appoint Tad 

Bybee to the Snow Grooming Board. The motion passed. 

 

10 1:30 PM Planning and Development Director Hal Jensen, Assistant Director Tristan Bourquin, Aaron 

Menenberg and Scott Risley were present. Hough explained the purpose of the meeting was to learn about 

battery energy storage systems.  

Menenberg explained they were here to educate. He represents Renewable Northwest, a 501 non-profit 

that represents energy interests of the northwest states. A presentation was shown and included 

information on power production, supply, peak hours, and capacity planning for growth. 

1:34 PM Risley, Senior Director of Development for RWE explained batteries, storage, consumption, and 

generation.  

 

 

11 3:03 PM Clerk Jason Dixon, Captain Lyle Thurgood, Lt. Kasey Johnson, and Lt. Jayson Clark were also 

present. Discussion ensued regarding the general state of the jail. Dixon began reading the quarterly jail 

inspection questionnaire. 3:09 PM The group toured the facility. 3:38 PM The tour concluded and Dixon 

concluded the questions from the questionnaire. 3:40 PM Chief Deputy Alex Hamilton joined the 

meeting. Discussion included low population numbers, new plate scanners and cameras, Sheriff 

notification app, and the new intercom system. 3:47 PM Hough adjourned the meeting. 

54 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



DRAFT December 16, 2025, BOCC Minutes 

 

   

 

  Action Item Summary 
  
  

  ACTION/DIRECTION ASSIGNED TO 

  Tax cancellation requests were granted. Assessor/Treasurer/Resolution 

  Agreement with IDJC for D6 services was approved. Clerk 

  

Resolution 2025-88 Approving Tax Cancellation Requests, and 

Ordinances 2025-09 City of Downey Area of Impact, 2025-10 City of 

Inkom Area of Impact, 2025-11 City of Lava Hot Springs Area of 

Impact, 2025-12 City of McCammon Area of Impact, 2025-13 City of 

Pocatello Area of Impact, 2025-07 City of Arimo Area of Impact, and 

2025-08 City of Chubbuck Area of Impact were passed. 

Clerk/Publish 

 

 

  Contract with Sharp Performance was approved. Sheriff 

  Authorized destruction of documents. Resolution 

 Consent agenda items were approved. Auditing/Clerk 

 

Proposals for Lava Ranches Fuels Reduction Phase 2 were accepted for 

review from Retroscape LLC, Absolute Forestry LLP, Bob McKee 

Construction, and CR Fence Company LLC. 

Procurement/OEM 

 Executive session was held to consider personnel matters. Clerk 

 Tadd Bybee was appointed to the Snow Groomer Board. Commission 
 

55 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025



DRAFT December 18, 2025, BOCC Minutes 

 

  

  Meeting Details       

  Date of Meeting: Thursday, December 18, 2025 

  Commissioners present: Ernie Moser, Jeff Hough, and Ken Bullock 

  Clerk of the Board: Jason C. Dixon 

  Absent Board Members:  

  
Staff present: 

Deputy Clerk Nancy Allen, Comptroller Kristi Klauser, HR Director 

Matthew Phillips, and Attorney Jonathan Radford 

        

  Agenda Details       

  AGENDA 
  Business and Claims Meeting (action item) 

Work Session Agenda: 

1 • Commissioners seeking to discuss a property issue with possible Executive Session under Idaho 

Code §74-206(1)(d) to consider records that are exempt from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, 

title 74, Idaho Code with potential action following adjournment of Executive Session (requested 

10 minutes) (action item) 

2 • Kevin Sonico, Idaho Transportation Department, seeking signature on a Cooperative Agreement 

(requested 5 minutes) (action item) 

3 • Daniel Kendall, Chief Building Officer, providing a monthly facilities update 

4 • Emma Iannacone, Public Information Officer, reviewing 2025 Household Hazardous Waste 

Season (requested 5 minutes) (action item) 

5 • (AMENDED to make potential Executive) Scott Crowther, Event Center/Wellness Complex, 

seeking to discuss a letter from the Idaho Department of Water pertaining to the potential 

Curtailment for Ground Water Rights Junior to August 15, 1952 and how to move forward with 

possible Executive Session under Idaho Code §74-206(1)(f)  to communicate with legal counsel 

for the public agency to discuss the legal ramifications of and legal options for pending litigation, 

or controversies not yet being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated. The mere presence of 

legal counsel at an executive session does not satisfy this requirement with potential action 

following adjournment of Executive Session (requested 10 minutes) (action item) 

6 • Kiel Burmester, Public Works, seeking review of and signature on Cooperative Forest Road 

Agreement (requested 5 minutes) (action item) 

7 • Kristi Klauser, Auditing, request to sign lease documents for landfill compactor; sales agreement 

was signed on 11/20/25 (requested 5 minutes) (action item) 

8 Claims Agenda: 

• Board of Ambulance District: Invoices and Commissioner Report 

• Board of Commissioners: Invoices, Commissioners Reports, and Credit Applications 

• Salary Rate Approval Forms/Notice of Separation with Potential Executive Session under Idaho 

Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel with potential action following adjournment of 

Executive Session 

• Payroll Report 

• Alcohol Licenses and Permits 

• Certificate of Residency Approval 

• Mileage Reimbursement Requests 

• Technology Request Form 

• Memorandum Authorization for Accounts Payable 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF  

BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

56 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title74/T74CH1
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title74/T74CH1


DRAFT December 18, 2025, BOCC Minutes 

 

• Cardholder User Agreement and Authorization 

9 Bid Opening for Request for Qualifications for Master Planning Services (action item) 
 

 

 

 

 

  Meeting Notes 
  
  

  

1 9:01 AM Hough called the meeting to order. Moser moved to approve the amended agenda. The motion 

passed.  

 

2 9:01 AM Lexi Jorgenson appeared and requested a cooperative agreement for the Park Lawn to Siphon 

project. Highway 91 is being widened and ITD needs this permission to tie in Briscoe Road. 9:02 AM 

Public Works Director Kiel Burmester appeared and recommended approving the agreement as that 

section is under state jurisdiction. Moser moved to approve the agreement. The motion passed.  

 

3 9:04 AM Kendall gave department updates. 

 

4 9:12 AM Management Assistant Aubri Lewis and Landfill Manager Dillon Evans also appeared. 

Iannacone gave updates on the past year for the Hazardous Waste Days.  

 

5 9:34 AM Hough moved to enter into executive session under Idaho Code §74-206(1)(d) and (f) to 

consider records that are exempt from disclosure and communicate with legal counsel on two separate 

issues. The motion passed by roll call vote. 10:12 AM Hough moved to exit executive session. The 

motion passed. 

 

6 9:25 AM Chris Colt with the Forest Service also appeared. Burmester reviewed this is the five year 

agreement to work together. Moser moved to approve the agreement. The motion passed. 

 

7 9:33 AM Klauser reviewed the lease documents. Hough moved to approve the lease. The motion passed.  

 

8 10:16 AM Bullock moved to approve the items on the consent agenda. The motion passed. 

 

9 10:12 AM Procurement Officer Shanda Crystal appeared. Hough reviewed the solicitation for Master 

Planning RFQ. The bids were unsealed. Hough read responses were received from: 

Breckon Land Design 

FFKR Architects 

Heco Engineers 

Rodney Evans + Partners 

SZABO Landscape Architecture 

Moser moved to accept the responses for review. The motion passed.  

   

 

  Action Item Summary 
  
  

  ACTION/DIRECTION ASSIGNED TO 

  Agenda amendment accepted. Clerk 

  Cooperative Agreement entered with ITD for Hwy 91 widening project. Public Works 

  

Executive sessions held to communicate with legal counsel and for 

consideration of exempt records. Clerk 

  Cooperative Forest Road Agreement approved. Public Works 

  Lease documents signed for landfill compactor. Landfill/Auditing 

 Consent agenda items approved. Clerk/Auditing 

 

Qualifications responses accepted for review from Beckon Land Design, 

FFKR Architects, Heco Engineers, Rodney Evans + Partners, and SZABO 

Landscape Architecture on Master Planning Services. 

Procurement/Parks & Rec 

 

57 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' - MEETING DECEMBER 23, 2025


	December 23, 2025
	1223.pdf
	Binder2.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	1223.pdf

	20251216 Minutes DRAFT
	20251218 Minutes DRAFT

	JmlZShKJA3tq-Application_PFS-Law-Enforcement-Grant_30579_Bannock-County-Sheriffs-Office




